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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Iocated at 131-135 West Washmgl:on Street in Hagerstown, Washington County,
the Miller House stands on the south side of the street near the center of the
block formed by Sunmmit Avenue and Prospect Street. '

The Miller House is a circa 1820's brick neoclassical style townhouse which
is two and one-half storeys in helght and rests on a high cut stone foundation.
The house is basically rectangular in shape with an ell or wing projecting from
the back or south side and a one bay addition, built circa 1915, attached to the
east side. The main section of the house has a metal-covered cable roof which
extends over the east addition and internal double-end cl'ﬁnneys on the east and
west walls. The west wall extends above the roofline forming a parapet.

The principal or street facade (north side) has four bays, counting the
east addition, and a narrow comice of wood molding. The addition is slightly
recessed but otherwise matches the original facade fairly well. The main
entranceway is located in the west end bay and is reached by a stone, prcbably
marble, stoop with iron railing. The basement has two windows in line with
those of the upper levels in the original house and a window and door in the
addition. The basement door is reached by a small flicht of steps with iron
railing matching that of the steps leading to the main entrance.

The first and second floor windows have double-hung wooden sashes with
six—-over-six lights and narrow frames molded in an ovolo or convex manner.

" Each of these windows have stone, prcbably marble, sills and lintels and are
flanked by exterior shutters. The shutters on the first floor windows have
three solid panels each while those of the second story windows are louvered.
The basement windows have double-hung wooden sashes with three-over—three lights.

The main entranceway has a molded stone, probably marble, lintel, a '
rectangular transom with gecmetric tracery, and double wooden doors with three
panels each.

The back or south side of the main section has a tripartite window on
the first floor looking onto the garden. The w:Lng, which abuts the west
property line, has a shed roof sloping downward in an easterly direction. A
portion of the ng is thought by many to date from an earlier period. The
east wall of the wing has a series ofsdouble-hung wooden sash windows with
nine-over-six lights and narrow frames with a bead.

Regarding the interior of the Miller House, the floor plan is essentially
the same on the first and second floors. The main section-of the house has
two rooms and a passage on each level. The woodwork of the principal rooms is
double~faced architrave molding with a pronounced round bead at the outer edge.
Most of the doors have six raised panels. Each of the two parlors on the first
floor has dark marble mantels with little embellishment other than reeding and
fluting.

The most elaborate interior area is the entrance hall which has a :
cantilevered, rounded staircase which is open to the top floor. The staircase
has open-string stairs and scroll brackets. The balustrade consists of a round
handrail and round baluster and terminates in a twist around the newel. The hall
is divided into two sections by an archway with fluted round pilasters. Entrance
to the second story of the wing is gained by a small set of steps rising from
the rounded section of the main staircase.

(See continuation sheet 1)
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7. Description Continued:

The woodwork in the back wing is generally of the single-faced type,
although not as wide as that in the front section. The mantel in the room )
now furnished as a dining room is early nineteenth century in design. Immediately
behind the entrance hall is a smaller hall with an enclosed staircase on the
west end and a large doorway with sidelights and a semi-elliptical transom.

This doorway leads onto a porch and is at right angles to the tripartite window
of the main section. Both the mantel piece and the doorway described here may
not be original to the house as their decorative detalllng is not guite the
same as that in the rest of the wing.

An early twentieth century photograph of the house, owned by the
Historical Society and identified as the house when Dr. Miller purchased it
in 1912, shows that the principal or street facade has been changed little
except for the alterations noted above. Another area of possible alteration
is the flooring of the principal interior rooms which are covered with
narrow boards.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Miller House is a cixca 1820's neoclassical style townhouse whlcn
presently serves as the headguarters of the Washmgton County Historical Soc:.e‘-y
The house is a fine example of the type of urban dwelling that was built in
western Maryland and south central Pennsylvania in the first third of the
nineteenth century.
The main portion of the house is believed to have been built for William Price
(17 -1868), a prominent attorney who purchased the property in 1823. (Deed Boock
GG, p. 173). Price twice seryed in the Maryland Legislature and was appointed a
U.S. District Attorney by President Lincoln. (Williams, p. 426.) In 1825, he
was elected to the State Senate from Washington County. Forty vears later, he
returned to the Iegislature, representing the Baltimore area. A native of
Washington County, Price moved to Cumberland, Allegany County, about 1842 and later
to Baltimore. He was the father of the noted late nineteenth century architect
Bruce Price (1845-1903) and the grandfather of Emily Price Post (1873-1960), the
late author and etiquette au_horl*y :
Price sold the house in 1844 to Alexander Neil, Jr. (1808-c. 1863), a
lawyer and President of the Hagerstown Bank. (Deed Book O.H.W. No. 2, p. 491.)
- Subsequently, the property was acguired by Neil's son, Alexander Neil, III (1844-1911),
who was a merber of the Maryland House of Delegates in 1870 and served as auditor
of the Washington County Court in 1876. (Scharf, p. 1043.)
The house was enlqrged in about 1915 when a one-bay addition was attached
to the east end of the main portion. The addition was built to house the medical
offices of Victor D. Miller, Jr. (1875-1955), a prominent physician who purchased
the property in 1912 from the heirs of Alexander Neil, III. (Deed Book 138, p. 102).
Miller is also responsible for r\,sbormg the orlglnal front doors which had been
replaced in the late nineteenth century.
The Washington County Historical Society acguired the house in 1966 from
the Miller ;,amily through donation and purchase. Named in honor of Dr. Miller, the
Miller House is now used by the Society for its office, library, and museunm.
The house stands on the westerly half of Lot No. 91 of the original
plat of Hagerstown. Peter Bell purchased the half-lot in 1802 for %300. (Deed Book
O, p. 481.) Bell and his sons operated a pottery on this site well into the first
quarter of the 1800's when the property was sold for payment of debts. It is
’cradltlonally said that a section of the Bell House is included in the present
back wing of the Miller House.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Iocated at 131-135 West Washington Street in Hagerstown, Washington
County, the Miller House stands on the south side of the street near the
center of the block formed by Summit Avenue and Prospect Street.

The Miller House is a circa 1820s brick neoclassical style town-
house which is two and a half stories in height and rests on a high cut
stone foundation. The house is basically rectangular in shape with an ell
or wing projecting from the back or south side and a one bay addition,
built circa 1915, attached to the east side. The main section of the house
has a metal-covered gable roof, which extends over the east additiong and
internal double-end chimneys on the east and west walls. The west wall
extends above the roofline forming a parapet.

The principal or street facade (north side) has four bays, counting
the east addition, and a narrow cornice of wood molding. The addition is
slightly recessed but otherwise matches the original facade fairly well.
The main entranceway is located in the west end bay and is reached by a
stone, probably marble, stoop with iron railing. The basement has two
windows in line with those of the upper levels in the original house and a
window and door in the addition. The basement door is reached by a small
flight of steps with iron railing that matches that of the steps leading to
the main entrance. e

The first and second floor windows have double-hung wooden sashes
with six-over-six lights and 'narrow frames molded in an ovolo or convex
manner. Each of these windows have stone, probably marble, sills and
lintels and are flanked by exterior shutters. The shutters on the first
floor windows have three solid panels each while those of the second story
windows are louvered. The basement windows have double~hung wooden sashes
with three-over-three lights.

The main entranceway has a molded stone, probably marble, lintel,
a rectangular transom with geometric tracery, and double wooden doors with
three panels each.

The back or south side of the main section has a tripartite window
on the first floor looking on to the garden. The wing, which abuts the
west property line, has a shed roof sloping downward in an easterly
direction. A portion of the wing is thought by many to date from an
earlier period. The east wall of the wing has a series of double-hung
wooden sash windows with nine-over-six lights and narrow frames with a
bead.

Regarding the interior of the Miller House, the floor plan is
essentially the same on the first and second floors. The main section of
the house has two rooms and a passage on each level. The woodwork of the
principal rooms is‘entablatuse molding with a pronounced round bead at the
outer edge. Most of the doors have six raised panels. Each of the two
parlors on the first floor hawe dark marble mantels with little embellish-
ment other than reeding and fluting.

sedooble Famd arditove. SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
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#7. DESCRIPTION continued

The most elaborate interior area is the entrance hall which has
a cantilevered, rounded staircase which is open to the top floor. The
staircase has opan-string stairs and scroll brackets. The balustrade
consists of a round handrail and round balusters® The hall is divided
into two sections by an archway with fluted round pilasters. Entrance
to the second story of the wing is gained by a small set of steps rising
from the rounded section of the main staircase.

inale~Ta
The woodwork in the back %ganeraﬂ@f the M
type, although not as wide as that t section. The mantel in the
room now furnished as a dining room is early nineteenth century in
design. Immediately behind the entrance hall is a smaller hall with an
enclosed staircase on the west end and a large doorway with sidelights
and a semi-elliptical transom. This doorway leads onto a porch and is
al righ a.nglasto the tripartite window of the main section. Both the

howie -:::..: ;-e“.; gmmﬂnym bBOriginalto the

same A rest of the

An early twentieth century photograph of the house, in-the- W/ 8o by

the Historical Society and identified as being the
appearanee—of- the house when Dr. r purchased it in 1912, shows that
the prineipal or street facade d little except for the altera-

tions noted above. Another area of possible alteration is the flooring
of the principal interior rooms which are covered with narrow boards.

% ond, Termipates in tuist arovad. the pewel.

(1 of 2 continuation sheets)




INSTRUCTIONS

S$EE

WA-HAG-123

H AT G
PERIOD (Check One or More aa Appropria

e
e

te)

[ Pre-Columbion [ V6th Century [0 18th Century [ 20th Century
[ 15th Century 1 17th Century E 19th Century
SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable and Known) circa 1820s
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Chack One or More ae Appropriate)
Abor iginal X1 Education f£1 Political [ Urban Planning
[J Prehistoric [] Engineering [0 Religion/Phi. ] Other (Specity)
[J Historic O Industry losophy
[[] Agriculture [l Invention [C] Science
@ Architeciure [0 Lendscope [ Sculpture
O An Architecture fc] Secial/Human-
[0 Commerce [ Literature irarian
[0 Communications [ Milirery [ Theater
[0 Conservation [ Music [0 Transportation

|STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Miller House is a circa 1820s neoclassical style townhouse
which presently serves as the headquarters of the Washington County
Historical Society. The house is a fine example of the type of urban
dwelling that was being built in western Maryland and southtentral
Pennsylvania in the first third of the nineteenth century.

The main portion of the house is believed to have been built for
William Price (17 -1868), a prominent attorney who purchased the
property in 1823. (Deed Book GG, p. 173.) Price twice served in the
Maryland Legislature and was appointed a U. S. District Attorney by
President Lincoln. (Williams, p. L26.) In 1825, he was elected to the
State Senate from Washington County. Forty years later, he returned to
the Legislature, representing the Baltimore area. A native of Washington
County, Price moved to Cumberland, Allegany County, about 1842 and later
to Baltimore. He was the father of the noted late nineteenth century
architect Bruce Price (1845-1903) and the grandfather of Emily Price Post
(1873-1960), the late author and etiquette authority.

Price sold the house in 184l to Alexander Neil, Jr.,(1808-c.1863),
a lawyer and President of the Hagerstown Bank. (Deed Book 0.H.W. No. 2,
p. 491.) Subsequently, the property was acquired by Neil's son,
Alexander Neil, IIT,(1844-1911), who was a member of the Maryland House
of Delegates in 1870 and served as auditor of the Washington County Court
in 1876. (Scharf, p. 1043.)

in

The house was enlargedjabout 1915 when a one bay addition was
attached to the east end of the main portion. The addition was built to
house the medical offices of Victor D. Miller, Jr.,(1875-1955), a
prominent physician who purchased the property in 1912 from the heirs of
Alexander Neil, III. (Deed Book 138, p. 102.) Miller is algo
responsible for restoring the original front doors which hﬁﬁe}"r&med
in the late nineteenth century.

The Washington County Historical Society acquired the house in
1966 from the Miller family through donation and purchase. Named in
honor of Dr. Miller, the Miller House is now used by the Society for its
office, library, and museum.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
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dissertation. Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut, 1957.

Scharf, J. Thomas. History of Western Maryland, 2 vols. Philadelphia:
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Miller House
131-135 West Washington Street
Hagerstown, Maryland 217LO

#8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

The house stands on the westerly half of Lot No. 91 of the
original plat of Hagerstown. Peter Bell purchased the half-lot in 1802
for £300. (Deed Book O, p. L81.) Bell and his sons operated a
pottery on this site well into the first quarter of the 1800s when the
property was sold for payment of debts. It is traditionally said that
a section of the Bell house is included in the present back wing of the
Miller House. o

#9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES continued

Washington County Historical Society, files. Miller House, Hagerstown,
Maryland.

Washington County Land Records, Courthouse, Hagerstown, Maryland.

Williams, Thomas J. C. A History of Washington County, Maryland, 2 vols.
Hagerstown, Md.: dJohn M. Runk and L. R. Titsworth, 1906.

(2 of 2 continuation sheets)
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131-135 West Washington Street i

Washington County, Maryland

site: Miller House
. Hagerstown
map: Tax Map No. 32
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Hagerstown, Washington Co., Maryland
revised to October, 1974
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site: Miller House
131-135 West Washington Street :
r\ Hagerstown ¥
Washington County, Maryland -

map: City of Hagerstown, Maryland ‘
Engineering Department
revised 1972 -
scale 1:1200 )
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Form No. 10-301a '

iRev. 10-74)
« UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR e .
g NATIONAL PARK SERVICE FOR N'FSJUSE,Q_N:LY :
\ONATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES ~ [RECIEVED. :
== PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPH FORM A
s _ DATE ENTERED,
SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NAT/IONAL REGISTER FORMS '
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- ENCLOSE WITH PHOTOGRAPH -
i NAME
[
HISTORIC

Miller House

AND/OR COMMON Miller House

pm——
'~ LOCATION
CITY, TOWN —~——VICINITY OF TATE COUNTY
Hagerstown Marylan?:l Wwashington
~ PHOTO REFERENCE
pHoTO CREDIT Ronald, Andrews pateofproto  July 1975

NEGATIVEFILEDAT  Maryland Historical Trust, Annapolis, Maryland

.

o
' IDENTIFICATION
DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC. IF DISTRICT, GIVE BUILDING NAME & STREET PHOTO NO.

north elevation 2

GPO 892.454
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Form No. 10-301a
(Rev, 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONALREGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHFORM

J—

FOR NPSUSEONLY

DATE ENTERCD :

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS ‘
TYPE ALLENTRIES -- ENCLOSE WITH PHOTOGRAPH

[ S hid

Ui NAME

HISTORIC

Miller House : .

AND/CGR COMMON
Miller House

"’ | LOCATION
CITY, TOWN i ——VICINITY OF STATE COUNTY
Hagerstown ‘ Maryland Washington
P T~ T ATy v
;.:A.j PHOTO REFERENCE
PHOTOCREDIT  Ronald Andrews pateoFpHoto  July 1975

NEGATIVEFILEDAT Mayv]and Historical Trust, Annapolis, Maryland

/1] IDENTIFICATION

DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC. IF DISTRICT, GIVE BUILDING NAME & STREET - PHOTO NO.

entrance hall, first floor ' ‘ 1

GPO HO2. 44
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WA-HAe-128
Miller House
)3) - 135 West M/J.shsnc;ion Sz
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WA- WAG- 128
enlonce Hhell, First fleor

MiVlere House
j31- 135 west M.sfnn‘.;fan Iz,

Ha aerston
WMBm;f:on 3
/-‘J.w? Jand

July, 1975

Aewaeld L. Agdrewss
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